
 

 

 

Public Notice – Board of Education Online Public Meeting 

 

A public meeting of the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) will be held on April 25, 2023, at 7:00 

pm. 

 

Please note that all Public Board and Committee meetings are now held in person at the District School Board 

Office, located at 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria.   

 

Furthermore, the meeting will be livestreamed via MS teams, to encourage more public participation. 

To join the in meeting please click here Public Board Meeting | Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) and click  

Follow Link. 

 

To guide you, the following is information on how to join a live event in MS Teams. 

https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84 

 Anyone who has the link can attend the online meeting without logging in to MS Teams.  

 Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items discussed at the 

meeting: 

o Select the Q&A function on the right side of the screen. 

o When asking a question using the Q&A function, please identify yourself.  Anonymous 

questions will not be responded to. 

 A reminder for Stakeholder groups to use the Q&A function. 

o Members of the media can direct their questions to the Communications Manager at School 

District 62 for response following the meeting. 

 

 

If you have questions regarding the meeting and how to access it that aren’t answered in the link above please 

email info@sd62.bc.ca.  See link for upcoming and previous Board and Committee meetings Public Meetings | 

Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) materials. 

 

Page 1 of 144

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings/public-board-meeting-16
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84
mailto:info@sd62.bc.ca
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings


 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

PUBLIC MEETING 
By Live Event 

April 25, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 

 
1. 

2. 

CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIEIS 

We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically 
Esquimalt Nation, Songhees Nation, and acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with 
directly in our schools:  Sc’ianew Nation, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast 
Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three nations SD62 works with) 
 

AGENDA (page 2) 

2.1  Call for amendments and additional items 
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) 
adopt the public meeting agenda of April 25, 2023, as presented (or as 
amended). 

3. 

 

MINUTES (page 6) 

3.1  Call for amendments to minutes 
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) 
adopt the public meeting minutes of the March 14, 2022, as presented (or 
amended). 

4. 

 

INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

4.1  Board Chair Update – Amanda Dowhy 

4.2  Citizens Environment Network in Colwood (CENIC) Environment Stewardship Award – 

Amanda Dowhy (page 11) 

5. 

 

EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

5.1  Music Departments in SD 62 – Lorna Bjorklund 

5.2  Student Trip to Japan, March 16-27, 2024 – Belmont Secondary School – Megan 

Bondurant (page 12) 

5.3  Student Trip, to Galapagos and Ecuador, March 18-29, 2024 – Centre Mountain Lellum 

Middle School– Christine DoSouto (page 41) 
 

Page 2 of 144



 

 

 

6. 

 

7. 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS 

6.1  Correspondence (page 67) 

a.  Email from Single Mothers’ Alliance dated March 7, 2023, RE: Transit for Teens 

b.  Letter from the Sooke Music Teachers’ Association dated March 8, 2023, RE: Current 

State of Music Education in SD 62 

c.  Letter from the City of Langford Mayor and Council dated March 16, 2023, RE: 

Response to Request for All-Weather Turf Field and Lights 

d.  Letter to the Mayor and Council of the City of Langford, dated March 17, 2023, RE: 

Request for Meeting 

e.  Email from Laurel Parliament, dated March 17, 2023, RE: Expansion, Growth and Music 

Programs 

f.  Email from Alia Riza, dated March 31, 2023, RE: Moose Hide Campaign 

g.  Letter from Kevin Allen, dated April 17, 2023, RE: SD 62 International Student-Juan de 

Fuca Soccer Partnership 

h.  Letter from Bob Beckett, dated April 19, 2023, RE: Support for Global Stewardship 

Project Motion 

i.  Letter from Stew Young, dated April 19, 2023, RE: Support for Global Stewardship 

Project Motion 

 

6.2  Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each 

FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

7.1  Resources Committee – Meeting of April 11, 2023 – Ebony Logins (page 101) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all 

three readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2023/24-CPSD62-01 at its meeting of April 25, 

2023. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, 

second and third readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2023/24-CPSD62-01. 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke)  

receive the report from the Resources Committee Meeting of April 11, 2023. 

7.2  Committee of the Whole Meeting of April 18, 2023 – Amanda Dowhy (page 104) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive 

the report from the Committee of the Whole meeting of April 18, 2023. 

 

7.3  2023/24 Annual Budget Bylaw – Harold Cull (page 106) 

Page 3 of 144



 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first 

reading to the 2023/24 Annual Budget Bylaw, specifying a total of $205,967,471. 

 

EDUCATION PROGRAM 8. 

8.1  Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of April 4, 2023 – Allison Watson (page 124) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft revised Policy and Regulations F-333 “Accumulated 

Operating Surplus”. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft revised Policy and Regulations F-334 “Financial Planning and 

Reporting”. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct 

the Superintendent to develop a Global Stewardship program for SD62 to be reviewed 

through the Education-Policy Committee for the purposes of initiating opportunities 

to support SD62 students becoming global citizens. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive

 the report from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of April 4, 2023. 

 

9. STUDENTS 

 

10. FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 

10.1  Board Work Plan 90 Day Outlook – Amanda Dowhy (page 134) 

 

10.2  Na’tsa’maht Education Committee Meeting of April 19, 2023 – Russ Chipps (page 135) 

 

10.3  Governance Committee Meeting of April 17, 2023 – Amanda Dowhy (page 140) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft revised Policy A-100 “Statement of Philosophy” as presented 

to the Governance Committee at their meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft revised Policy A-101 “Administrative Organization” as 

presented to the Governance Committee at their meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

Page 4 of 144



 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft revised Policy A-350 “Professional Development” as 

presented to the Governance Committee at their meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive 

the report from the Governance Committee Meeting of April 17, 2023. 

 

11.  ADMINISTRATION 

11.1  Superintendent’s Report – Scott Stinson (page 142) 

 

12.  PERSONNEL 

 

13.  UPCOMING EVENTS 

 

14.  FUTURE ITEMS 

 

15.  QUESTION PERIOD 

Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items 

discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams.  Individuals must identify 

themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their 

questions to the Manager, Strategic Communications for response following the meeting. 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 5 of 144



 

 

MINUTES 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC MEETING By Live Event 

March 14, 2023 – 7:00 p.m.  
 
TRUSTEES:  Ravi Parmar, Board Chair Amanda Dowhy, Vice Chair 

Cendra Beaton   Russ Chipps 

Ebony Logins (virtual)  Trudy Spiller (virtual) 

Allison Watson 

 

STAFF:  Scott Stinson, Superintendent 

  Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer 

Windy Beadall, Acting Associate Superintendent 

Monica Braniff, Associate Superintendent 

Paul Block, Associate Superintendent 

Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR 

Farzaan Nusserwanji, Executive Director, IT 

  Steve Tonnesen, Manager IT Operations 

Sue Grundy, Manager Executive Operations 

 

REGRETS:   

   

SECRETARY: Kristina Ross 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIEIS 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by the Board Chair.  Ravi Parmar acknowledged 

the traditional territories of the First Nations. 

 

2. AGENDA  

2.1 Call for amendments and additional items 
 
60. MOVED Amanda Dowhy/Cendra Beaton 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public 
meeting agenda of March 14, 2023, as amended. 
CARRIED 

 

3. MINUTES  

3.1 Call for amendments to minutes 

Page 6 of 144



 

 

 
61. MOVED Amanda Dowhy/Cendra Beaton 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public 
meeting minutes of February 28, 2022, as presented. 
CARRIED 

 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

4.1 Board Chair Update – Ravi Parmar 

The Board Chair spoke about the Trustee Student Forum that occurred on February 

22, 2023, at Edward Milne Community School, indicating that it was a meaningful 

opportunity it was to engage directly with students.  Further, the Board of Education 

hosted the Mayor and Council of the District of Metchosin and provided a tour of Hans 

Helgesen Elementary School.  Lastly, he wished all staff, students and families a restful 

Spring Break. 

 

5. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

 

6. CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS 
6.1 Correspondence 

a. Letter from Minister Lore, dated February 28, 2023: RE: Congratulations. 
 
62. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the letter from 
Minister Lore, dated February 28, 2023, RE: Congratulations. 

 CARRIED 
 

6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each 

  STA – Jennifer Anderson 

  No delegation. 

   

  CUPE 459 – Lou Leslie 

1st Vice President Lou Leslie provided a recap of all Truth and Reconciliation 

Activities that CUPE 459 has currently underway.  Calls to Action are included in all 

executive and general meetings with members, collective agreement language now 

includes Indigenous benefits for members, PRO D Days will include applicable 

education, and CUPE 459 has recently created a Diversity Committee. 

   

  PVP – Mark Johnson 

No delegation. 

Page 7 of 144



 

 

   

  SPEAC – Melissa Da Silva 

  No delegation. 

 

7. FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
7.1 Resources Committee – Meeting of March 8, 2023 – Ebony Logins  

Trustee Ebony Logins provided an update on the Resources Committee Meeting of 

March 8, 2023. 

 

63.    MOVED Ebony Logins/Amanda Dowhy 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) support the re-

branding of Information Technology to Digital Solutions to focus on Digital 

Literacy, Infrastructure and Tech Support, Cyber Risk and Security, Data 

Analytics and Records, and Digital Integration as core service areas identified. 

CARRIED 

 

64.   MOVED Ebony Logins/Cendra Beaton 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the report 

from the Resources Committee Meeting of March 8, 2023. 

CARRIED 

 

7.2 Capital Update – Harold Cull 

Staff provided an update to the Board of Education on deficiencies and remaining 

work at PEXSISEN Elementary and Centre Mountain Lellum Middle Schools.  

Additionally, staff spoke on South Langford Elementary, and that the project was out 

to tender during the week of March 13, 2023.  Conversations with the City of Langford 

indicated that the City would not support payment for an all-weather playing field and 

lights for community use. 

 

65. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Amanda Dowhy 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct staff to revert 

back to a grass playing field at the South Langford School Site. 

CARRIED 

 

66. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Russ Chipps 

That the Board of Education of the School District 62 (Sooke) direct the Board 

Chair to arrange a meeting for the Board to meet with the Langford Mayor and 

Council to further our relationship. 

CARRIED 

Page 8 of 144



 

 

 

7.3 22/23 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw – Harold Cull 

 

67. MOVED Amanda Dowhy/Allison Watson 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all three 

readings of the 2022/23 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw at its meeting of March 

14, 2023. 

CARRIED 

 

68. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, second 

and third readings to the 2022/23 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw. 

   CARRIED 

 

8. EDUCATION PROGRAM 
8.1 Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of March 7, 2023 – Allison Watson 

Trustee Allison Watson provided an update on the Education-Policy Committee 

Meeting of March 7, 2023. 

 

69. MOVED Allison Watson/Cendra Beaton 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) accept and endorse 

the 2023/2024 Schools Codes of Conduct as amended. 

CARRIED 

 

70. MOVED Allison Watson/Cendra Beaton 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the report 

from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of March 7, 2023. 

 CARRIED 

 

9. STUDENTS 

 

10. FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 

10.1 Board Work Plan 90 Day Outlook – Ravi Parmar 

The Board Chair provided the Board of Education a review of the next 90-day work 

plan.   

 

11. ADMINISTRATION  

11.1 Superintendent’s Report – Scott Stinson 

 

Page 9 of 144



 

 

The Superintendent provided an update to the Board of Education on learning, 

engagement, and growth.  He spoke about district diversity, equity and inclusion 

learning, the Na’tsa’maht Community Dinners, a charity event at Edward Milne 

Community School, and the Business Continuity Planning tabletop exercise that the 

district leadership undertook. 

 

12. PERSONNEL 

 

13. UPCOMING EVENTS 

EMCS Softball Academy Information Night – March 14, 2023 

 

14. FUTURE ITEMS 

 

15. QUESTION PERIOD 

Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items 

discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams.  Individuals must identify 

themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their 

questions to the Manager, Communications for response following the meeting. 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 

 

Certified Correct: 

 

 

 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Chairperson of the Board   Secretary-Treasurer 

 

Page 10 of 144



                                                                    March 20th, 2023 

Sooke School Board Chair 
3143 Jacklin Road 
Victoria, BC 
V9B5R1 
 

Dear Ravi Parmar, 

Citizens’ Environment Network in Colwood awards three stewardship awards each year, one to an 

individual living or working in Colwood, one to a business operating in Colwood, as well as one to an 

institution also operating in Colwood.  We select our candidates from those who we feel have shown 

exemplary stewardship to our environment. 

This year we would like to notify you that The Sooke School District #62 has been selected as our 

CENIC 2023 Environment Steward in the Organization category.  The Sooke School District acts as an 

example of an organization that wishes to reduce its carbon footprint by including in its operations 

and buildings practices that demonstrate a desire to reduce greenhouse gases and move forward in 

climate action.  In 2021 the district became the first in BC to own and operate an electric school bus.  

The district now has five electric buses in its fleet and are looking to add more next fall.  You also have 

added two electric utility vehicles to your Facilities fleet.   We congratulate you on the fact that your 

latest school builds (Belmont Secondary, Centre Mountain Lellum Middle School, PEXSISEN 

Elementary School and Royal Bay Secondary School) are LEED Gold certified.  You have stepped 

forward in providing solar panels for Centre Mountain Lellum Middle School , PEXSISEN Elementary 

and Royal Bay Secondary School and geothermal systems for heating and cooling of PEXSISEN 

Elementary School and Centre Mountain Lellum Middle School.  We are also pleased to see the 

commitment to food security by encouraging school gardens that teach students about building and 

planting gardens as well as sharing the food produced. 

CENIC wishes to acknowledge and applaud the leadership efforts of the Sooke School District to 

protect the environment and for acting as environment stewards  in our community. 

We hope that you will respond to our invitation to receive this award by contacting 

colwoodcenic@gmail.com.  The award will be announced on Tuesday, April 18th at the final event of 

our CENIC Speaker Series.  Please have a look at our included brochure regarding the event.  We invite 

you to attend if you are able so that we might present your award to you at this time.  We will also 

have an outdoor event on Earth Day when we will be planting a tree in honour of the recipient of the 

Individual category.  We will also be mentioning the Organization and Business winners at this time.  

We invite you to attend this tree planting event near Royal Bay High School on April 22.   

We at CENIC, are so pleased to recognize the Sooke School District stewardship and leadership in our 

community.  It is with great pleasure that we wish to award you with this well deserved recognition. 

Yours truly, 

Carol Brown, 
Chair, CENIC 

  
 

Page 11 of 144

mailto:colwoodcenic@gmail.com


Page 12 of 144



Page 13 of 144



Page 14 of 144



Page 15 of 144



Page 16 of 144



Page 17 of 144



Page 18 of 144



Page 19 of 144



Page 20 of 144



Page 21 of 144



Page 22 of 144



Page 23 of 144



Page 24 of 144



Page 25 of 144



Page 26 of 144



Page 27 of 144



Page 28 of 144



Page 29 of 144



Page 30 of 144



Page 31 of 144



Page 32 of 144



Page 33 of 144



Page 34 of 144



Page 35 of 144



Page 36 of 144



Page 37 of 144



Page 38 of 144



Page 39 of 144



Page 40 of 144



Page 41 of 144



Page 42 of 144



Page 43 of 144



Page 44 of 144



Page 45 of 144



Page 46 of 144



Page 47 of 144



Page 48 of 144



Page 49 of 144



Page 50 of 144



Page 51 of 144



Page 52 of 144



Page 53 of 144



Page 54 of 144



Page 55 of 144



Page 56 of 144



Page 57 of 144



Page 58 of 144



Page 59 of 144



Page 60 of 144



Page 61 of 144



Page 62 of 144



Page 63 of 144



Page 64 of 144



Page 65 of 144



Page 66 of 144



Page 67 of 144



Page 68 of 144



WHEREAS every teenager aged 13 to 18 should have the right to access school and
their communities; THEREFORE be it resolved

THAT the [GOVERNMENT BODY] endorse the Single Mothers’ Alliance Transit for
Teens Campaign; and in doing so, write a letter to the to the Mayors' Council on
Regional Transportation, the board of directors of BC Transit, the Ministry of
Transportation and Infrastructure, the Ministry of the Environment and Climate
Change Strategy, the Office of the Premier, the Ministry of Social Development and
Poverty Reduction, the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the Minister of State
for Infrastructure and Transit, the Ministry of Children and Family Development, and
the Select Standing Committee on Children and Youth to work with the provincial
government to finalize and secure funding, and develop a plan that will provide free
public transit for teens aged 13 to 18 in B.C. 

#TRANSITFORTEENS
S C H O O L  B O A R D  M O T I O N  K I T

GETTING A
MOTION PASSED
Help raise awareness locally and provincially about the
difference transit access for teens could have by visiting
your School Board, local municipal or town council and
asking elected representatives to pass a resolution that
supports the #TransitforTeens campaign.

Start by meeting with local politicians to get them onside.
Find out how to get a motion introduced and be prepared
to speak at committee and/or council meetings. Use our
sample resolution below as a starting point, and be sure to
check our website singlemothersbc.org for other helpful
resources you can use for research and background
information.

SAMPLE RESOLUTION

WE ARE HERE TO HELP
If you would like any assistance crafting or introducing your motion
please reach out to comms@singlemothersbc.org for assistance.

Page 69 of 144

https://www.singlemothersbc.org/
mailto:comms@singlemothersbc.org


#TRANSITFORTEENS
S C H O O L  B O A R D  M O T I O N  K I T

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Encouraging students to use public transit can increase their independence and participation in employment and
civic life (Akiyama, 2017; Gillmore, 2012; Relf, 2012; Sullivan, 2017; Tank, 2016). This extension can also help close
the equity gap and reduce poverty (Cleverley, 2017; Griffin, 2019; Isitt, 2020; McManus, 2018; Van Brenk, 2016).
Offering free transit to youth can incentivize a shift away from car travel (Todd, 2020), reduce the burden on parents
to drive their teenagers around (Tweedie, 2007), and provide access to those in need (Thistle & Paget-Seekins,
2017; Van Brenk, 2016). Sustainability is a critical aspect of public transit, and the benefits of free public transit for
teenagers in this regard cannot be overstated. Works by Isitt (2020), Kines (2020), and Schreck (2020) highlight the
significance of promoting sustainable transit practices, especially among the younger population. 

PUBLIC TRANSIT ENCOURAGES ACTIVE TRANSIT

A Vancouver study found using public transit to get to school increases daily
physical activity  (Gase et al., 2014)
Public transit can be both a physically and socially active experience for young
people (Jones et al 2012)

Almost all public transit journeys include an element of active transportation (i.e.
walking, cycling).

QUICK FACTS
There are  approximately 509,480 British Colombians between the
ages of 10-19, over 10% of population total (Statscan 2021).
Pre-pandemic only 40% of youth reported they had a sense of
community connectedness (B.C. Government 2016).
Transportation is B.C.’s largest source of emissions. The Province's
2030 target is to reduce transportation emissions by about a third.

Transit access opened up the lives of teens and hugely impacted their ability to access
school, after-school programs, volunteering, and social activities.
Teenagers had increased access to services and supports they needed particularly
true for mental health supports
Parents reported that their teens' sense of inclusion, worth, and mental well-being
were visibly affected by the free transit access.
The pass also increased teenagers' confidence to explore opportunities and activities
in their community.

The Single Mothers' Alliance participated in The City of Vancouver Reduced Fare Transit
Pilot, which provided 100 participants with free one-zone TransLink Compass Card passes
for six months from October 2021 to the end of March 2022. Our report on the impact of
the pilot program from their parent's perspective concluded:

Page 70 of 144

https://www.canva.com/design/DAFO9aeV8ws/94VGK82r_7IjNhZY5AWXQg/view?utm_content=DAFO9aeV8ws&utm_campaign=designshare&utm_medium=link&utm_source=publishsharelink
https://www.canva.com/design/DAFO9aeV8ws/edit
https://www.canva.com/design/DAFO9aeV8ws/edit


#TRANSITFORTEENS
S C H O O L  B O A R D  M O T I O N  K I T

SAMPLE LETTER
The Honourable Rob Fleming, MLA
Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure 
Province of British Columbia 
E-mail: Minister.Transportation@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable David Eby, MLA
Premier of British Columbia 
Office of the Premier
Province of British Columbia
E-mail: premier@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable Sheila Malcolmson, MLA
Minister of Social Development and Poverty Reduction 
Province of British Columbia 
E-mail: SDPR.minister@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable George Heyman, MLA 
Minister of the Environment and Climate Change
Strategy & Minister Responsible for TransLink
Province of British Columbia
E-mail: ENV.Minister@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable Rachna Singh, MLA 
Minister of Education and Child Care 
Province of British Columbia 
E-mail: EDUC.Minister@gov.bc.ca

The Honourable Mitzi Dean, MLA
Minister of Children and Family Development
Province of British Columbia
E-mail: MCF.Minister@gov.bc.ca 

CC: Select Standing Committee on Children and Youth. Email: ChildrenandYouthCommittee@leg.bc.ca
CC: BC Transit, Board of Directors. Email: Sacha_Ravelli@bctransit.com
CC: The Mayors’ Council on Regional Transportation. Email: mayorscouncil@translink.ca
CC: Kevin Falcon, MLA. E-mail: kevin.falcon.mla@leg.bc.ca 
CC: Sonia Furstenau, MLA. E-mail: sonia.furstenau.MLA@leg.bc.ca 

RE: Extending free transit to include youth 13-18 in all transit systems in BC

The [GOVERNMENT BODY] has recently approved a motion recognizing our support for "Transit for Teens" in BC.
In advocating for this policy we would like to begin by expressing our deep gratitude to the province for making
transit free for all youth 0-12 in BC as of September 2021. This bold and impactful policy innovation had an
immediate and long-term impact on families in BC with children under twelve. We are writing today to appeal to
you to build on this innovative policy solution and extend free transit to youth 13-18 in every transit system. Youth
are currently excluded from this important program in BC. They do not deserve to be. Youth aged 13-18 in the
crucial developmental stage of adolescence need basic mobility more than ever to thrive in every aspect of their
lives. Our youths are the future of this province and our most valuable resource. We must ensure their right to
access school and thrive while BC brings up new generations who choose sustainable transportation. 

We advocate for the province to build on the success of the universal approach already in place and raise the
eligibility age to eighteen. A universal approach ensures that no youth is left behind or singled out due to their
socioeconomic status. We cannot separate the right of every youth to access their school from their access to
the mobility to do so. For low-income youth transit access is a survival lifeline to access shelter, school, support
services, health care, and food security. 

We can no longer afford to leave our most valuable resource behind, our youth, and we
must build a new culture of green transportation rooted in generations to come. Thank
you for considering the extension of free transit up to the age of eighteen so all youth
have the freedom to thrive in BC. 

Sincerely,
[GOVERNMENT BODY]

Page 71 of 144

mailto:Minister.Transportation@gov.bc.ca
mailto:ENV.Minister@gov.bc.ca
mailto:SDPR.minister@gov.bc.ca
mailto:ENV.Minister@gov.bc.ca
mailto:EDUC.Minister@gov.bc.ca
mailto:MCF.Minister@gov.bc.ca
mailto:MCF.Minister@gov.bc.ca
mailto:ChildrenandYouthCommittee@leg.bc.ca
mailto:Sacha_Ravelli@bctransit.com
mailto:mayorscouncil@translink.ca
mailto:kevin.falcon.mla@leg.bc.ca
mailto:sonia.furstenau.MLA@leg.bc.ca


#TRANSITFORTEENS
S C H O O L  B O A R D  M O T I O N  K I T

REFERENCES
Akiyama, J. (2017, March 8). March break on bus with transit quest; Grade 8 students in the city will receive free      
transit passes to help them discover the bus. The Petersborough Examiner, 1–3.

Cleverley, B. (2017, November 22). 21 recommendations made to relieve child poverty. Times - Colonist, 1–3.

Gase, L., Kuo, T., Teutsch, S., & Fielding, J. (2014). Estimating the costs and benefits of providing free public
transit passes to students in Los Angeles county: Lessons learned in applying a health lens to decision-making.
International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 11(11), 11384–11397.
https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph111111384 

Gillmore, M. (2012, November 16). Students offered free bus passes. Yukon News, 1–2.

Isitt, B. (2020, January 7). We need people power to expand fare-free public transit for youth. Postmedia
Breaking News, 1–4.

Jones, A., Steinbach, R., Roberts, H., Goodman, A., & Green, J. (2012). Rethinking passive transport: Bus fare
exemptions and young people’s wellbeing. Health & Place, 18(3), 605–612.
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.healthplace.2012.01.003

Kines, L. (2020, January 31). Victoria repeats call for transit commission to let youth ride for free. Times -
Colonist, 1–3.

McManus, T. (2018, December 6). City supports free transit for youth. The Record, 1–2

Relf, H. (2012, June 5). Students need transit. The Mississauga News, 1–2.

Schreck, P. (2020, February 22). Youth transit pass about our priorities. Times - Colonist, 1–2.

Sullivan, V. L. (2017). Impact of free transit passes on youth travel behaviour [Masters of Applied Science (Civil
Engineering)]. University of Waterloo

Tank, P. (2016, April 29). Hill aims to get young riders on the bus. Star - Phoenix, 1–3.

Thistle, I., & Paget-Seekins, L. (2017). The youth pass: A study of the conflicts between ideal and practical
research design in a pilot social program. Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation
Research Board, 2652, Article 17–04551. https://trid.trb.org/View/1438776?ajax=1

Todd, K. G. (2020). Evaluating the costs and benefits of implementing a MARTA youth fare ARE [Masters Thesis].
Georgia Institute of Technology. 

Tweedie, K. (2007, January 11). Hit the road: Smartcard gives young Scots travelling on public transport huge
discounts. 1–3.

Van Brenk, D. (2016, September 11). London transit: The public transit authority says discounts for any one group
would mean the money would have to be found from someone else. The London Free Press (Online), 1–3

Page 72 of 144



2023

TRANSIT FOR TEENS:
PARENTAL
PERSPECTIVES ON THE
IMPACT OF FREE
TRANSIT FOR YOUTH
13-18 IN BC 

SMA RESEARCH BRIEF

Page 73 of 144



Introduction1

Key Findings Regarding Youth 13-182

Access to Activities 3

4

TABLE OF
CONTENTS

Uptake of Supports

5 Mental Health Impacts

6 Freedom to Thrive

#transit4teens

Page 74 of 144



Transportation is inextricably linked to people's social and economic well-
being and their ability to access the systems that support them. In September
2021, the City of Vancouver launched a pilot project to assess the impacts
and benefits of free-fare transit for low-income city residents. 

The City of Vancouver Reduced Fare Transit Pilot provided 100 participants
with free one-zone TransLink Compass Card passes for six months from
October 2021 to the end of March 2022. The Single Mothers’ Alliance was
one of four community partners invited to carry out the pilot project in
collaboration with the City of Vancouver. Each community partner was
responsible for recruiting an assigned number of participants and onboarding
their own peer researchers. 

The SMA was responsible for recruiting a total of 30 pilot participants. Three
lone-caregiver peer researchers directly impacted by the issue were
engaged and supported by SMA to carry out data collection and analysis.

SMA held optional focus groups to capture additional data from the pilot
participants supervised by SMA. This report focuses on select data regarding
free transit access for youth aged 13-18 from the additional focus groups
held by SMA. A full report on the pilot project will be released by the City of
Vancouver at a later date. 

IN
TRO

D
U

C
TIO

N

1 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

City of Vancouver 
Reduced Fare Transit Pilot 

Page 75 of 144



Families who identified as low-income and who did not own a car or
access any other form of subsidized transit. 

Lone caregiver-led families with single income households. 

Families residing in isolated neighbourhoods such as the Downtown
Eastside and East Vancouver.

Mothers escaping intimate partner violence living in transition
homes in Vancouver.

Low-income households with children under 12 already enjoying
free transit and/or with teenagers over 12.

Multi-generational households.

RECRUITMENT CRITERIA

2 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

SMA RECRUITMENT CRITERIA INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING:

Page 76 of 144



Data gathered about the experiences of free transit for youth aged 13–18
showed an extremely positive impact in most aspects of their lives.

Parents expressed that unlimited and
free transit access opened up the lives
of their teens and hugely impacted their
ability to access school, after-school
programs, volunteering, and social
activities.

Access to activities

Parents shared that their youth were
able to increase access to the services
and supports they needed. This was
particularly true for those struggling
with mental health issues and those
accessing programs such as support
groups and counseling.

Uptake of supports

Parents reported that their youth's
sense of inclusion, worth, and mental
well-being were visibly affected by the
free transit access. The ability for youth
to move freely without persecution and
judgement impacted their sense of
belonging and connectedness.

Sense of inclusion

Parents reported that unlimited transit
access for youth increased their
confidence to explore opportunities and
activities. The ability to explore helped
them to no longer feel  "left behind" and
left out of activities and opportunities
due to their socioeconomic status.

Freedom to thrive

The SMA-led focus groups were guided by a set of open-ended questions and
engaged the parents of youth aged 13-18 who received a transit pass in the
project. Some parents held pilot transit passes themselves, and others did not. 

This report shares a narrow scope of data regarding the impact of free transit on
youth pilot participants aged 13-18 from their parent's perspective. A report on
the full pilot project research data will be released at a later date by the City of
Vancouver.

KEY FINDINGS - YOUTH

3 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

Page 77 of 144



Use of transit definitely increased for my daughter. Her high school
is only a block away, but through the COVID situation, she really
wanted to start trying to go out more to see friends or to try to get
to programming through her school. The pass really helped a lot to
get her out. It helped her get out more. I've noticed a big change in
her because of that pass.

Parent focus group participants were asked how the transit pass held
by them and/or their youth affected their daily lives. The positive
impact of unlimited transit access when it came to their youth's ability
to carry out their basic activities and access daily needs such as
shopping, attending doctor’s appointments, and visiting parks and
recreation places in the city for social activities and exercise was
emphasized across all the focus groups. Ease of access to get to
school, after-school programs, and work was cited as one of the main
benefits of unlimited transit access by parents and their teenagers.
Participants shared that previously, their inability to afford all the
transit their youth needed and asked for limited their youth's access
to work opportunities, school, after-school activities, and visiting
green spaces in Vancouver.

ACCESS TO ACTIVITIES

4 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

Page 78 of 144



Just having that pass and being getting out to be able to
go get the support that she needs. l [mean] like a
program or something to get some help and direction and
[deal with] whatever depression she's feeling - it, [the
free pass], encouraged her to go. She didn't have to
worry about, you know, ‘do we have tickets?'

The parents of youth participants aged 13–18 indicated that, from
their perspective, unlimited and free transit access for their teenagers
meant an uptick in their access to available support both at school
and within their community. Without the barrier of lack of mobility,
parents noticed their teenagers making an increased effort to access
support services, which led to an overall perception of improved
mental well-being for low-income youth.

UPTAKE OF SUPPORTS

6 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

Page 79 of 144



It would be great to see them just take that one more step and cover the
teens to Grade 12. I think those are the people that tremendously need it
right now because of mental health and you know, isolation. Once
COVID rules drop, they'll be able to get to groups and sessions and
counseling more often as they need to or even just go out with friends
and hang out. So, I would really like to see them just take that one more
step and make transit free for kids and up until Grade 12.  

Participants reported their youth shared with them a feeling of being
judged when using transit when they could not afford to pay, and some
said they experienced persecution and harassment. The ability to "afford"
transit fares during the pilot improved their sense of inclusion and
belonging to the city and their community. Being able to visit
neighborhoods and recreational spaces outside of their immediate
surroundings also contributed to an increased feeling of belonging rather
than feeling 'stuck' in their neighbourhood.

SENSE OF INCLUSION

7 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

Page 80 of 144



My son, he's got the pass and has actually joined a couple of
afterschool programs now. The pass gets him to and from and he
doesn't have to worry about whether or not he catches me in the
morning to give him tickets, and to see if I even have enough tickets. 

Parents with youth who had free transit access for six months repeatedly
cited the positive effect the free transit access had on building confidence
in their youth to explore their surroundings and opportunities. They shared
that free access to transit for youth encouraged them to become more
independent in planning their daily activities and doing things on their
own. For all participants, transit is the only means of transportation and
takes up a significant amount of their income. According to parents and
caregivers, accessing free transit for six months during the pilot allowed
their families to save on transit and spend on other necessities and
activities that benefited their families such as food, outings and activities
fees for the whole family and for the children and youth. 

FREEDOM TO THRIVE

8 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

Page 81 of 144



Every time I handed the bus pass to my kid, he felt really like, wow, we
have money on it. And we didn't have to say, oh, 'can you give us a
ride here' to the bus driver, and he was so happy to actually tap it. And
I was happy because he loves being on the bus. So, it also helped me
to connect more with him because we would take long trips, we
wouldn't just stay in this [our] area.  

It's great and a blessing that we have transit systems that run all night
with a short stint in between, and to know that my teenage son has a
way of getting home without having to worry about whether or not he
has cash. It has really allowed that freedom and the flexibility to be able
to make it home every night instead of having to sleep at someone
else's house. And, you know, [previously] he can't get home; he didn't
have enough change and there were no stores open or, you know. For
him to be able to access the transit to bring him home safely was a
great, great peace of mind as a parent because it ensured that when I
wake up in the morning, I know that my son is in bed.  

IN THEIR WORDS

10 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

You know, sometimes my son was even asking the bus drivers for free
rides because he doesn't have the tickets... So, it's really beneficial to
just be able to present the pass and have it available. It has given him
a lot of freedom to be able to be social, and to be out with his friends.

Page 82 of 144



 
It's a good chunk of your finance that
really goes into transit, especially
when you're not doing a monthly
pass. Because you think, oh, well, it's
a shorter month, a school break in
between or something, so you won't
do a monthly pass, and then all of a
sudden, you're actually spending a
lot more, because now you're
restricted with the 90 mins time limit.

 

I really feel at peace. And I feel like
'normal' -  I don't know what that
means. But I feel like a normal human
being… respected. And you feel like
you are a member of the community
because you're not looking at your
shoulder for transit police or security. 

11 - Transit for Teens Research Brief

What we relied on before COVID-19 was collecting tickets from family
programs that we would attend. But because of COVID, there was no
programming. And it was really difficult to acquire tickets for her [my
teenager]. Now with COVID a lot of the programs are not buying tickets
anymore. So, we're really dependent on having a pass. It would be
great if they can continue it [the free passes] for sure. I think it would
be very beneficial for a lot of teens to have free access to transit.  

Page 83 of 144



Report prepared by:
Zeynya S. Alemayehu and Viveca Ellis for SMA.
Editing, support and design from Nikki Koutsochilis.

Contact

Single Mothers' Alliance
www.singlemothersbc.com
Research & Policy Lead:
zeynya@singlemothersbc.org

A
C
K
N
O
W
LED

G
EM
EN
TS

We would like to extend a special thank you to all
the City of Vancouver staff who supported our
opportunity to carry out additional focus groups
within the pilot project. 

Thank you to the three SMA-based peer
researchers who guided the research and carried
out data collection and all focus group
participants for their input and participation. 

Thank you to Sammie Jo Rumbaua for her work
recruiting participants from a diversity of
communities and neighbourhoods in Vancouver.
We would like to express our gratitude to the
YWCA Metro Vancouver for outreach support to
transition shelters to recruit mothers escaping
gender-based violence to participate in the pilot. 

Page 84 of 144



Sooke Music Teachers’ Association 

March 8th 2023 

Letter to trustees and SBO regarding the current state of music education in SD62  

 

Dear Mr. Palmer and all the SD62 trustees, 

First, on behalf of the Sooke Music Teachers’ Association (S.M.T.A.), let me say thank you for all 

you do for the schools in the district and the support you provide to staff.  We know this support often 

comes with personal sacrifices and we are grateful for the level of care you provide to the public as you 

serve. 

We, the S.M.T.A, felt it prudent to bring to your attention the shift in music education over the 

course of the last few years at the elementary level, what these changes have led to, and what we 

would like you to keep in your minds as schools reach and go over full capacity.  Our district continues to 

grow at an incredible rate and we must be prepared to maintain and build upon the high standard of 

music education our students have come to love, expect, and benefit from. All data discussed below is 

current and was collected and collated February 2023 and is representative of the situation faced by 

current music teachers across 13 (of 19) elementary schools in our district.  

 

At the start of the 2017-2018 school year, 100% of teacher’s prep time was dedicated to 100 

minutes of music education. Each music teacher had their own classroom, designated room or shared 

their space with a before/after school care program. We participated in whole district activities such as 

Music Monday at the Q-center for a number of years, and music programs across district were thriving. 

Currently, 50-100% of teacher’s prep time is dedicated to music education with 9 schools offering 80-

110 minutes, 2 schools offering <80 minutes and 2 schools offering <55 minutes. 7 of these 13 

elementary schools have been able to keep their own space or shared room, with 6 music teachers 

being removed from a dedicated music space. Those teachers are now teaching in shared spaces around 

the schools (e.g. the gym; library; or a shared multipurpose room- as seen in 4 schools), or off of a cart in 

the students’ homerooms (as seen in 2 schools). Another 2 music teachers are set to lose their school’s 

music room next year as the rooms will be turned into extra classrooms. As of September 2023, more 

than 50% of music teachers will be displaced from a room designated for music. These changes are due 

to the fact that prep teachers are not classed as enrolling teachers, therefore their spaces can be turned 

into ‘classrooms’ as more spaces are needed for excess students. Keep in mind, no other teacher is 

asked to give up their space and/or adapt their program like music teachers are in regards to the space 

and the perceived value of the programs they provide. 

For the 7 schools whose music teachers currently have not had to be relocated, or their space 

reduced in size, programs have continued to thrive with multiple instruments being taught (including, 

but not limited to; drumming, ukulele, recorder, and ORFF). For every school that has removed the 

music teacher from their dedicated space, they [the music teacher] have been forced to condense their 

program offerings, and are unable to offer as rich and varied a program as they used to (for example, no 

instruments).  Not to mention that storage in the school is often unavailable to keep instruments (that in 

most cases PACs have helped fundraise for), so they are often packed away or moved to another school, 

which perpetuates the inequality of instruction. Student engagement has also noticeably dropped when 

music teachers are moved to teach on a cart in homerooms. 

Page 85 of 144



These changes have led to major discrepancies. There has been a loss of an equitable high 

standard of instruction for students; a loss of an equitable amount of music instructional time for 

students; and a loss of equitable treatment of music teachers.  This is especially true when we look at it 

from the perspective of Indigenous education in our district.  Several years ago, music teachers were 

invited to take part in learning local Indigenous cultural songs that could then be taught to students as a 

way of bringing gifted Indigenous knowledge into the school.  A few years ago, 13 Indigenous drums & 

rattles were gifted to each elementary school as a way of encouraging the songs to be taught and 

honoring the intentions of drumming circles. The thought behind this is that music teachers are in a 

unique position: we see every student in the school which makes it an equitable way of introducing and 

affirming Indigenous ways of knowing in our district.  

Music is considered sacred and important in Indigenous culture. The loss of music rooms makes 

it difficult to properly pay tribute to our local Indigenous groups and foster the communal learning of 

oral tradition. Coming together to sing and perform in music classes are a natural way to integrate these 

aspects and provide a safe and inclusive space for all students. With the loss of a designated music 

classroom, all 5 areas of Development in the Primary Program (Aesthetic & Artistic, Emotional & Social, 

Intellectual, Social Responsibility, Physical Development & Wellbeing *B.C Curriculum 2000), that music 

teachers integrate into their units, are diminished. This is a disservice to our students.  

Looking to the future, as prep time increases to 120 minutes starting in September and with 

another 1000 students reportedly joining our district, we respectfully ask that the SBO and its trustees 

keep in mind the need for sufficient, designated spaces for music programs in our schools. Many schools 

have more than 1 prep teacher, therefore dedicated space for these teachers is essential. Music 

teachers teach much of the Fine Arts curriculum to 200-500 students per week and our role and 

programs ensure extra-curricular activities like Choir, Winter Concerts, Spring concerts, Talent Shows, 

Recorder, and Ukulele Clubs etc. are available for the enrichment of all our students.  

Many music teachers now face a hard choice between reducing their program to be taught off a cart, a 

different room less equipped for the subject, or going back to a classroom role which will lead to the loss 

of high-quality music educators in our district. Ensuring prep teachers have a dedicated space to teach in 

eliminates this choice, as well as ensures a continued high-quality standard of music education, which 

positively impacts school culture and opportunities. 

 We thank you for reading this information and hope we have shown you the importance of 

creating, and keeping space for music education and its educators in our schools. Our teachers and 

students deserve it! 

  

Kind regards, 

 

   Jess Sketchley 

Jessica Sketchley and the SMTA Executive Committee 

 

 

Page 86 of 144



Schools that participated in data findings: 

Colwood Elementary,  

Crystal View Elementary,  

David Cameron Elementary,  

Happy Valley Elementary 

John Muir Elementary,  

Pexsisen Elementary,  

Poirier Elementary,  

Ruth King Elementary 

Sangster Elementary,  

Saseenos Elementary,  

Savory Elementary,  

Willway Elementary,  

Wishart Elementary. 

 

Schools that did not participate: 

 

Ecole John Stubbs, 

Hans Helgeson Elementary, 

Lakewood Elementary, 

Port Renfrew Elementary, 

Millstream Elementary, 

Sooke Elementary. 

 

A Framework for Teaching: 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/early-learning/teach/resources/primary_prog.pdf  

Page 87 of 144

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/early-learning/teach/resources/primary_prog.pdf


Langford 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

March 16, 2023 

Board of Education Chair Ravi Parmar and Trustees 
Sooke School District Board of Education 
3143 Jacklin Road 
Langford, BC V9B 5R1 

Dear Ravi, 

On behalf of Council, I am writing to you today in response to your letter dated March 8, 2023, as well as 
our own conversations regarding the District's request to the City to fund an artificial turf field at the 
South Langford Elementary School. 

As you are aware, the City of Langford is a long-standing partner of the District and has contributed 
approximately $3 million dollars towards District regulation size turf fields and lighting over the past 
five-years. This includes the financial commitment by the City of $1.5 million dollars in advance of the 
District securing funding from the Province for the future North Langford Elementary School. This shows 
our clear commitment to the partnership with SD62, and provides more regulation size turf field access 
to local sport user groups. 

We understand the upgrade to an artificial turf field over grass is a preference for the District. 
Unfortunately, the City is facing considerable financial demands to support a variety of overarching 
needs of the community. This includes significant requests from the YMCA, the West Shore RCMP, and 
the Langford Fire Department, to name a few. Over the last few years, the City kept annual tax increases 
low, which has caused significant compression on the financial demands of the City. The reality is, 
Council is facing budgetary decisions, which will have a considerable impact on the Langford taxpayer, 
something both myself and members of Council must take into careful consideration. The additional 
request of $950,000 from the District for an artificial turf field for South Langford Elementary School 
could mean an additional 2.5% tax increase, should Gas Tax revenue be needed elsewhere, and is 
something Council must deliberate during the 2023 budget process. 

In addition to the noted budget implications, City staff are reviewing the preliminary results of its Parks, 
Recreation and Trails Needs Assessment (commissioned last year), which, when completed, will be a 
tool used for guiding future parks and recreation planning. Preliminary findings received in early March 
found that the additions of the artificial turf fields at Centre Mountain Lellum Middle School and the 
soon to be finished field at North Langford Elementary School will provide sufficient programmable 
space, when taken with the other artificial turf fields already in Langford, until 2031 based on current 
population projections and sports team registration trends. I anticipate that Council will want to review 

t 250.478.7882 2nd Floor, 877 Goldstream Avenue 
e hello@langford.ca Langford, BC V9B 2X8 

La ngford.ca 

Page 88 of 144



Langford 

the preliminary Parks, Recreation and Trails Needs Assessment results prior to making a decision 
regarding SD62's request. 

I also wish to note that it is my understanding that the proposed South Langford Elementary field will 
not be regulation size due to site constraints. Therefore, I expect that Council may also wish to consider 
if there are other locations that may be more suitable for an additional artificial turf field when the City 
considers funding artificial turf fields in the future. 

While I recognize that the timing may be too late for SD62, it is the City's intention for Council to 
consider the District's request in the context of the preliminary Parks, Recreation and Trails Needs 
Assessment findings and in relation to other City budgetary pressures during the upcoming budget 
process. 

In closing, I value the historical relationship between our two organizations, built on trust and respect, 
and despite the negative media coverage this week, I hope that we can move forward together for the 
betterment of the community. 

Sincerely, 

Aaaldgb•-•••• 

Mayor Scott Goodmanson 
City of Langford 

t 250.478.7882 2nd Floor, 877 Goldstream Avenue 
e hello@langford.ca Langford, BC V9B 2X8 

La ngford.ca 

Page 89 of 144



Page 90 of 144



Page 91 of 144



Page 92 of 144



Page 93 of 144



Page 94 of 144



Page 95 of 144



Page 96 of 144



Page 97 of 144



Page 98 of 144



Page 99 of 144



Dear School District 62, 
 
We are writing to you today to express my deep concern about the possible removal of the music room 
in our daughter's elementary school, Colwood Elementary, due to a 10th division being added. We 
understand that this is also being discussed in other elementary schools in the district. As parents, we 
firmly believe that music education is an essential part of a child's overall development, and we urge you 
to reconsider this decision. 
 
The music room is a place where children can express themselves creatively, learn new skills, and build 
confidence in themselves. It provides a safe and supportive environment where children can explore 
their musical interests, whether it be through singing, playing an instrument, or composing their own 
music. We have seen firsthand how our daughter's passion for music has grown and flourished thanks to 
the opportunities provided by the music room. 
 
Music education has numerous benefits for children. Studies have shown that learning music can 
improve cognitive skills, memory, and language development. It also helps children to develop social 
skills, such as teamwork and communication, and to build self-esteem and confidence. 
 
Removing the music room would not only deprive our child of these valuable experiences but would also 
be a disservice to the entire school community. It would be a significant loss for the students, teachers, 
and families who value music education and see it as an important part of a well-rounded education. 
 
We would also like to add that our Parent Advisory Council (PAC) as well as our music teacher have 
made significant investments (thousands of dollars) in our music room. It is beautiful and well taken care 
of; there are full class sets of instruments including beautiful drums that our school collectively built 
with the guidance of our indigenous role models. Recently parents, staff and students attended a 
ceremony lead by our indigenous role models to bless these drums. It is unacceptable to think these 
drums may end up in a storage closet and brought from room to room. It is disrespectful not to mention 
the increased wear and tear on them and other instruments we have invested in.  
 
We understand that budgetary constraints are a reality, but we urge you to consider the long-term 
benefits of music education for our children in a designated music room environment. Investing in music 
education now will pay dividends for years to come, both in the personal growth and development of 
our children and in the cultural enrichment of our community. 
In conclusion, we implore you to keep the music room at Colwood Elementary school. We believe that 
music education is a vital component of a well-rounded, inclusive, education, and we are confident that 
you share this belief. Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Skye and Alan McBride 

Page 100 of 144



 

 

Committee Report of 

Resources Committee Meeting of April 11, 2023 

via MS Teams 
 

Present: Ebony Logins, Trustee (Committee Chair) 

Amanda Dowhy, Trustee (Committee Member) 

Trudy Spiller, Trustee (Committee Member) 

Scott Stinson, Superintendent & CEO 

Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer 

Ed Berlando, STA  

Trudy Court, CUPE 

Ceilidh Deichmann, SPVPA 

Pete Godau, Director of Facilities (virtual) 

David Lee-Bonar, Assistant Secretary-Treasurer (virtual) 

  

Staff: Nicole Gestwa, IT  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

The meeting was called to order at 6:08 pm by the Committee Chair, who acknowledged that we 
are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically Esquimalt 
Nation, Songhees Nation and acknowledge the three nation SD 62 works with directly in our 
schools; Scia’new Nation, Coast Salish, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast Pacheedaht 
Nation Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three Nations SD62 works with) 

 
2. COMMITTEE REPORT 

 The Board of Education of Sooke School District 62 (Sooke) received the Resources Committee 

Report dated March 8, 2023, at its Public Board Meeting dated March 15, 2023. 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

4. BUSINESS 

4.1 23/24 Operating Budget Development Process – Harold Cull 

The budget development process for 23/24 school year continues.  Based on feedback from 

stakeholder groups the budget priorities continue to be to: Early Learning Supports; 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion; Mental Health and Wellness; and Growth. The Resources 

Committee discussed these four themes, and the Executive’s budget plan to address each of 

Page 101 of 144



 

 

these priority areas.  The Committee discussed the roughly $21 M that is being added to next 

year’s budget and the estimated impacts this funding will have on the system. 

 

4.2 23/24 Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) Project Details – Pete Godau 

Staff provided an overview of the 23/24 Annual Facilities Grant Project Details and discussed 

how the AFG Program fits into the overall minor capital program.  The Committee asked 

staff questions about some of the programs and projects being considered for the upcoming 

year.  The Committee supports the AFG plan being part of the Capital Plan Bylaw, to be 

discussed and considered by the Board of Education at the April 25, 2023 Board meeting. 

 

4.3 23/24 Capital Plan Bylaw – Harold Cull 

The School District received a formal response to its 23/24 Capital Plan Submission that was 

approved at the June 2022 Public Board Meeting.  In summary, the District received support 

for seismic projects at Port Renfrew Elementary School and Sooke Elementary.  As well as a 

HVAC update for Spencer Middle School, roofing upgrade to Millstream Elementary School, 

an energy upgrade to John Muir Elementary, an electrical upgrade to Savory Elementary 

School and a playground at Dunsmuir Middle School.  The Committee discussed the positive 

news of the capital response letter on the seismic front and support the following two 

motions going forward to the Board of Education for consideration. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all three 

readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2023/24-CPSD62-01 at its meeting of April 25, 2023. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, 

second and third readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2023/24-CPSD62-01. 

 

4.4 24/25 Capital Plan Submission – Harold Cull 

The Committee began the discussion of reviewing the District’s ask of government with their 

24/25 Capital Plan Submission.  This is the beginning of the process and staff will bring back a 

recommended plan for the Committee and Board of Education’s consideration in May and 

June 2023. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE: May 9, 2023 

Page 102 of 144



Capital Plan Bylaw  April 2023 

 
CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2023/24 – CPSD62-01 

CAPITAL PLAN 2023/24 
 

WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District 
No. 62 (Sooke) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of Education 
(hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has approved a 
capital plan with modifications, 
 
NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this 
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following: 
 

(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the 
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications; 

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently 
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister; 

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to 
the Board or the capital project(s); and, 

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the 
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister. 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows: 
 

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2023/2024 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to 
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated March 9, 2023, is hereby adopted. 

 
2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District 62 (Sooke) Capital Bylaw No. 2023/24 – 

CPSD62-01. 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THE 25th DAY OF April 2023; 
READ A SECOND TIME THE 25th DAY OF April 2023; 
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 25th DAY OF April 2023. 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Board Chair 
 APPLY CORPORATE SEAL 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District 62 (Sooke) Capital Bylaw No. 2023/24 – 
CPSD62-01 adopted by the Board the 25th day of April 2023. 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 103 of 144



1  

 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
PUBLIC MEETING 

April 18, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES:  Amanda Dowhy, Interim Board Chair Cendra Beaton    

  Russ Chipps    Ravi Parmar    

  Trudy Spiller (virtual)   Allison Watson (virtual) 

 

STAFF: Scott Stinson, Superintendent 

  Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer 

  Monica Braniff, Associate Superintendent 

  Windy Beadall, Acting Associate Superintendent 

Paul Block, Associate Superintendent 

Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR 

Farzaan Nusserwanji, Executive Director, IT 

  Nicole Gestwa, IT Operations 
David Lee Bonar, Assistant Secretary-Treasurer 

 
REGRETS:     Ebony Logins  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Interim Board Chair.  Amanda Dowhy acknowledged the 

traditional territories of the First Nations.  The Board Chair acknowledged stakeholders and members of the 

public participating in the meeting and reminded media to direct their questions to the Manager of 

Communications. 

 

2. AGENDA 

 

 

3. MINUTES 

 

 

4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

 

5. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

5.1 23/24 Budget Plan – Harold Cull 

Harold Cull provided an overview of the 23/24 budget development process, the recommended budget 

plan, and the risks associated for the Board of Education to review and consider at their upcoming Public 
Board Meeting on April 25. 

 

Page 104 of 144



2  

 

6. DELEGATIONS 

6.1 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) 

Both CUPE 459 and the STA focused on several areas in the budget which included attendance 

support, LA/IS teacher time and case loads, funding beyond designations, counselling time, additional 

ECEs and the budget survey that was partially conducted over spring break. 

 

7. FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

7.1 23/24 Budget Plan Discussion 

The Committee discussed the budget presentation and the challenges of ensuring the budget 

priorities are met from an operational and capital perspective.  Several areas of the budget were 

discussed by the Committee and included: 

 

• Professional development; 

• Classrooms that have been repurposed; 

• Transportation; 

• Attendance support and wellness; 

• Childcare and ECEs; 

• Staff Affordability Fund; 

• Inflation; 

• Staffing ratios; and  

• The financial reserve. 

 

Staff were able to provide responses to questions raised in support of the Board’s 1st reading of the 

Annual Budget Bylaw scheduled for April 25, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 

 

Certified Correct: 

 
 

 
 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Interim Chairperson of the Board   Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 105 of 144



1  

 

 

Board Info Note 
Public Board Meeting 

April 25, 2023 
Agenda Item: 7.3 – 23/24 Annual Budget Bylaw  

 
 
 

Background 
 

• The District has been working through the 23/24 budget development process since the 
middle of February and staff have now drafted a recommended plan for the Board to 
consider tonight and on May 23rd  
 

• The attached Annual Budget Bylaw and Ministry template were part of the package and 
discussion held on April 18th at the Board’s Committee of the Whole (COW) 

 

• As no formal direction was received from the Board at the COW meeting, staff are asking 
the Board to review and debate the budget plan presented prior to considering the 1st 
reading of the bylaw at their meeting tonight 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer 

Page 106 of 144



A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE)
(called the ''Board'') to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2023/2024 pursuant
to section 113 of the School Act , R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act ").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act , Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of
Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2023/2024.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the
2023/2024 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $205,967,471 for the 2023/2024 fiscal
year was prepared in accordance with the Act .

4. Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board
for the fiscal year 2023/2024.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 25th DAY OF APRIL, 2023;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 23rd DAY OF MAY, 2023;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 23rd DAY OF MAY, 2023;

( Corporate Seal )

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget Bylaw 2023/2024, adopted by the Board the 23rd DAY OF MAY, 2023.

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

Chairperson of the Board

Secretary Treasurer

Secretary Treasurer

Version: 4911-4165-2183
 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 107 of 144



Annual Budget

School District No. 62 (Sooke)

June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 108 of 144



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
June 30, 2024

Table of Contents

Bylaw  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................1

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense - Statement 2  ..........................................................................................................................................2

Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) - Statement 4  .............................................................................................................................................4

Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense - Schedule 2  .......................................................................................................................................................5

Schedule 2A - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................6

Schedule 2B - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................7

Schedule 2C - Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................8

Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense - Schedule 3  ......................................................................................................10

Schedule 3A - Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds  ..............................................................................................................................................11

Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense - Schedule 4  ...............................................................................................................14

*NOTE - Statement 1, Statement 3, Statement 5, Schedule 1 and Schedules 4A - 4D are used for Financial Statement reporting only.

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 109 of 144



A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE)

(called the ''Board'') to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2023/2024 pursuant

to section 113 of the School Act , R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act ").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act , Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of

Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2023/2024.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the

2023/2024 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $205,967,471 for the 2023/2024 fiscal

year was prepared in accordance with the Act .

4. Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board

for the fiscal year 2023/2024.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 25th DAY OF APRIL, 2023;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 23rd DAY OF MAY, 2023;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 23rd DAY OF MAY, 2023;

( Corporate Seal )

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget Bylaw 2023/2024, adopted by the Board the 23rd DAY OF MAY, 2023.

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

Chairperson of the Board

Secretary Treasurer

Secretary Treasurer

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 110 of 144



Statement 2

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's

School-Age 13,330.000                12,763.875                

Adult 16.500                       99.438                       

Total Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's 13,346.500                12,863.313                

Revenues $ $

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 182,231,009              163,941,392              

Tuition 6,879,749                  6,899,749                  

Other Revenue 3,876,766                  5,036,317                  

Rentals and Leases 502,500                     502,500                     

Investment Income 363,875                     370,395                     

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 11,034,978                9,581,173                  

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - For Lease 61,477                       61,477                       

Total Revenue 204,950,354              186,393,003              

Expenses

Instruction 168,514,190              151,717,077              

District Administration 7,121,344                  6,870,183                  

Operations and Maintenance 26,040,348                23,942,726                

Transportation and Housing 3,941,589                  3,951,925                  

Total Expense 205,617,471              186,481,911              

Net Revenue (Expense) (667,117)                   (88,908)                     

Budgeted Allocation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 156,344                     3,111,224                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (510,773)                   3,022,316                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year comprised of:

Operating Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Special Purpose Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Capital Fund Surplus (Deficit) (510,773)                   3,022,316                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (510,773)                   3,022,316                  

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Page 2

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 111 of 144



Statement 2

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Budget Bylaw Amount

Operating - Total Expense 159,926,129              145,344,959              

Operating - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 1,654,418                  

Special Purpose Funds - Total Expense 32,475,454                29,362,862                

Capital Fund - Total Expense 13,215,888                11,774,090                

Capital Fund - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 350,000                     350,000                     

Total Budget Bylaw Amount 205,967,471              188,486,329              

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Approved by the Board

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Page 3

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 112 of 144



Statement 4

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (667,117)                   (88,908)                     

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets

From Operating and Special Purpose Funds (1,654,418)                

From Local Capital (350,000)                   (350,000)                   

From Deferred Capital Revenue (21,747,390)              

Total Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (350,000)                   (23,751,808)              

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 11,895,751                10,461,149                

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 11,545,751                (13,290,659)              

-                                -                                

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) 10,878,634                (13,379,567)              

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51 Page 4

Page 113 of 144



 Schedule 2

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 151,437,995              135,536,363              

Tuition 6,879,749                  6,899,749                  

Other Revenue 945,666                     945,666                     

Rentals and Leases 502,500                     502,500                     

Investment Income 353,875                     353,875                     

Total Revenue 160,119,785              144,238,153              

Expenses

Instruction 136,375,613              122,691,092              

District Administration 7,121,344                  6,870,183                  

Operations and Maintenance 13,116,992                12,407,348                

Transportation and Housing 3,312,180                  3,376,336                  

Total Expense 159,926,129              145,344,959              

Net Revenue (Expense) 193,656                     (1,106,806)                

Budgeted Prior Year Surplus Appropriation 156,344                     3,111,224                  

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (1,654,418)                

Local Capital (350,000)                   (350,000)                   

Total Net Transfers (350,000)                   (2,004,418)                

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                                -                                

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51 Page 5

Page 114 of 144



Schedule 2A

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 150,612,444              129,597,913              

ISC/LEA Recovery (515,866)                   (515,866)                   

Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants

Pay Equity 931,052                     931,052                     

Funding for Graduated Adults 40,000                       40,000                       

Student Transportation Fund 358,365                     358,365                     

FSA Scorer Grant 12,000                       12,000                       

Labour Settlement Funding 5,112,899                  

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 151,437,995              135,536,363              

Tuition

Continuing Education 90,000                       110,000                     

International and Out of Province Students 6,789,749                  6,789,749                  

Total Tuition 6,879,749                  6,899,749                  

Other Revenues

Funding from First Nations 515,866                     515,866                     

Miscellaneous

Grants for Crossing Guards 70,000                       70,000                       

Rebates 51,000                       51,000                       

SGF Discretionary 200,000                     200,000                     

Miscellaneous 108,800                     108,800                     

Total Other Revenue 945,666                     945,666                     

Rentals and Leases 502,500                     502,500                     

Investment Income 353,875                     353,875                     

Total Operating Revenue 160,119,785              144,238,153              

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51 Page 6

Page 115 of 144



 Schedule 2B

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Salaries

Teachers 60,310,293                54,564,115                

Principals and Vice Principals 9,909,659                  9,745,939                  

Educational Assistants 16,600,332                13,552,784                

Support Staff 15,209,931                13,727,935                

Other Professionals 5,506,595                  5,281,009                  

Substitutes 6,173,919                  5,437,225                  

Total Salaries 113,710,729              102,309,007              

Employee Benefits 29,188,926                26,065,358                

Total Salaries and Benefits 142,899,655              128,374,365              

Services and Supplies

Services 7,343,233                  7,631,049                  

Professional Development and Travel 1,063,697                  1,068,586                  

Rentals and Leases 311,891                     386,891                     

Dues and Fees 153,156                     153,156                     

Insurance 522,651                     467,651                     

Supplies 5,790,202                  5,456,617                  

Utilities 1,815,844                  1,780,844                  

Bad Debt 25,800                       25,800                       

Total Services and Supplies 17,026,474                16,970,594                

Total Operating Expense 159,926,129              145,344,959              

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51 Page 7

Page 116 of 144



Schedule 2CSchool District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 51,036,397          261,836               158,187               2,368,670            533,374               4,387,991            58,746,455          

1.03 Career Programs 245,412               206,505               13,781                 465,698               

1.07 Library Services 556,467               311,682               6,424                   874,573               

1.08 Counselling 2,021,227            1,120                   2,022,347            

1.10 Special Education 4,060,063            282,781               16,080,145          109,172               1,219,585            892,304               22,644,050          

1.30 English Language Learning 791,339               131,512               922,851               

1.31 Indigenous Education 600,500               253,700               362,000               89,350                 41,600                 1,347,150            

1.41 School Administration 8,685,767            2,681,761            242,544               11,610,072          

1.61 Continuing Education 30,938                 30,938                 

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 987,813               273,907               352,000               1,613,720            

Total Function 1 60,299,218          9,757,991            16,600,332          6,281,590            1,752,959            5,585,764            100,277,854        

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 151,668               896,716               1,048,384            

4.40 School District Governance 147,500               147,500               

4.41 Business Administration 11,075                 651,443               2,241,174            119,262               3,022,954            

Total Function 4 11,075                 151,668               -                           651,443               3,285,390            119,262               4,218,838            

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 130,693               151,980               282,673               

5.50 Maintenance Operations 5,742,002            216,493               383,263               6,341,758            

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 594,113               -                           594,113               

5.56 Utilities -                           

Total Function 5 -                           -                           -                           6,466,808            368,473               383,263               7,218,544            

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 127,445               99,773                 227,218               

7.70 Student Transportation 1,682,645            85,630                 1,768,275            

Total Function 7 -                           -                           -                           1,810,090            99,773                 85,630                 1,995,493            

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Functions 1 - 9 60,310,293          9,909,659            16,600,332          15,209,931          5,506,595            6,173,919            113,710,729        

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Page 8
Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 117 of 144



Schedule 2CSchool District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Indigenous Education

1.41 School Administration

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and 2024 2023 Amended

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $ $ $ $ $

58,746,455          15,574,754          74,321,209          4,285,744            78,606,953               70,213,743               

465,698               130,525               596,223               355,730               951,953                     953,555                     

874,573               225,393               1,099,966            45,194                 1,145,160                 2,516,165                 

2,022,347            529,123               2,551,470            6,237                   2,557,707                 2,787,815                 

22,644,050          5,825,853            28,469,903          624,549               29,094,452               21,585,936               

922,851               240,334               1,163,185            160,000               1,323,185                 2,635,688                 

1,347,150            349,425               1,696,575            423,825               2,120,400                 2,003,534                 

11,610,072          2,693,651            14,303,723          669,998               14,973,721               14,375,962               

30,938                 6,005                   36,943                 19,500                 56,443                       73,055                       

1,613,720            377,032               1,990,752            3,554,887            5,545,639                 5,545,639                 

100,277,854        25,952,095          126,229,949        10,145,664          136,375,613             122,691,092             

1,048,384            220,231               1,268,615            596,592               1,865,207                 1,825,090                 

147,500               9,500                   157,000               132,088               289,088                     314,088                     

3,022,954            692,025               3,714,979            1,252,070            4,967,049                 4,731,005                 

4,218,838            921,756               5,140,594            1,980,750            7,121,344                 6,870,183                 

282,673               65,765                 348,438               376,918               725,356                     1,100,108                 

6,341,758            1,629,520            7,971,278            1,516,016            9,487,294                 8,502,817                 

594,113               146,032               740,145               348,353               1,088,498                 1,023,579                 

-                           -                           1,815,844            1,815,844                 1,780,844                 

7,218,544            1,841,317            9,059,861            4,057,131            13,116,992               12,407,348               

227,218               55,648                 282,866               57,991                 340,857                     432,446                     

1,768,275            418,110               2,186,385            784,938               2,971,323                 2,943,890                 

1,995,493            473,758               2,469,251            842,929               3,312,180                 3,376,336                 

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                 

113,710,729        29,188,926          142,899,655        17,026,474          159,926,129             145,344,959             

Page 9
Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 118 of 144



Schedule 3

2024 2023 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 29,534,354                25,255,691                

Other Revenue 2,931,100                  4,090,651                  

Investment Income 10,000                       16,520                       

Total Revenue 32,475,454                29,362,862                

Expenses

Instruction 32,138,577                29,025,985                

Operations and Maintenance 336,877                     336,877                     

Total Expense 32,475,454                29,362,862                

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                                -                                

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51 Page 10

Page 119 of 144



Schedule  3ASchool District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 336,877            570,089            192,000            41,650              339,831            789,819                 1,564,934           

Other 2,000,000         46,000                   

Investment Income 10,000              

336,877            570,089            10,000              2,000,000         192,000            41,650              339,831            835,819                 1,564,934           

Less: Allocated to Revenue 336,877            570,089            10,000              2,000,000         192,000            41,650              339,831            835,819                 1,564,934           

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 336,877            570,089            192,000            41,650              339,831            789,819                 1,564,934           

Other Revenue 2,000,000         46,000                   

Investment Income 10,000              

336,877            570,089            10,000              2,000,000         192,000            41,650              339,831            835,819                 1,564,934           

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 45,000              30,217                

Principals and Vice Principals 46,000                   

Educational Assistants 445,382            186,516              

Support Staff 8,000                125,000            54,500                   153,602              

Other Professionals 165,000                 

Substitutes 15,000              10,000              19,500              15,000                   872,462              

-                        445,382            -                        23,000              135,000            19,500              45,000              280,500                 1,242,797           

Employee Benefits 124,707            5,750                33,000              5,950                11,000              67,000                   282,476              

Services and Supplies 336,877            10,000              1,971,250         24,000              16,200              283,831            488,319                 39,661                

336,877            570,089            10,000              2,000,000         192,000            41,650              339,831            835,819                 1,564,934           

Net Revenue (Expense) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Page 11
Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 120 of 144



Schedule  3ASchool District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Classroom First Nation Mental Changing Seamless SEY2KT ECL School Youth

Enhancement Student Health Results for Day (Early Years to Early Care Food Work

Fund - Staffing Transportation in Schools Young Children Kindergarten Kindergarten) & Learning Programs Trades

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

23,798,000           29,044                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         

30,000              

23,798,000           29,044                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         30,000              

23,798,000           29,044                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         30,000              

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

23,798,000           29,044                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         

30,000              

23,798,000           29,044                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         30,000              

18,932,379           36,000              25,000              

40,000              

40,000              6,000                

10,000                  5,000                38,000              

18,932,379           -                           10,000                  -                       40,000              5,000                120,000            -                        25,000              

4,865,621             2,000                    14,300              1,000                34,000              5,000                

29,044                  39,000                  6,000               1,100                13,000              21,000              1,565,710         

23,798,000           29,044                  51,000                  6,000               55,400              19,000              175,000            1,565,710         30,000              

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Page 12
Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 121 of 144



Schedule  3ASchool District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Academies Artstarts Donations Theatres TOTAL

$ $ $ $ $

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

29,534,354       

806,000            7,600                40,000              1,500                2,931,100         

10,000              

806,000            7,600                40,000              1,500                32,475,454       

806,000            7,600                40,000              1,500                32,475,454       

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

29,534,354       

806,000            7,600                40,000              1,500                2,931,100         

10,000              

806,000            7,600                40,000              1,500                32,475,454       

70,000              19,138,596       

20,000              106,000            

631,898            

60,000              447,102            

165,000            

9,300                994,262            

159,300            -                        -                        -                        21,482,858       

38,000              5,489,804         

608,700            7,600                40,000              1,500                5,502,792         

806,000            7,600                40,000              1,500                32,475,454       

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Page 13
Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51

Page 122 of 144



Schedule 4

Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2023 Amended

Capital Assets Capital Balance Annual Budget

$ $ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 1,258,660                   1,258,660            3,149,338              

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 11,034,978                 11,034,978          9,581,173              

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - For Lease 61,477                        61,477                 61,477                   

Total Revenue 12,355,115                 -                           12,355,115          12,791,988            

Expenses

Operations and Maintenance 1,320,137                   1,320,137            1,312,941              

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 11,266,342                 11,266,342          9,885,560              

Transportation and Housing 629,409                      629,409               575,589                 

Total Expense 13,215,888                 -                           13,215,888          11,774,090            

Net Revenue (Expense) (860,773)                     -                           (860,773)              1,017,898              

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased -                           1,654,418              

Local Capital 350,000               350,000               350,000                 

Total Net Transfers -                                  350,000               350,000               2,004,418              

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital 350,000                      (350,000)              -                           

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 350,000                      (350,000)              -                           

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (510,773)                     -                           (510,773)              3,022,316              

2024 Annual Budget

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Version: 4911-4165-2183

 April 13, 2023  22:51 Page 14

Page 123 of 144



 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT OF THE 
EDUCATION-POLICY COMMITTEE 

School Board Office 
April 4, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Allison Watson, Trustee (Committee Chair) 

  Russ Chipps, Trustee (Committee Member) 
  Amanda Culver, STA 
  Lou Leslie, CUPE 
  Georgette Walker, SPVPA 
  Scott Stinson, Superintendent/CEO 
  Monica Braniff, Associate Superintendent 
  Windy Beadall, Acting Associate Superintendent 
 

Guests:  David Lee-Bonar, Heather Lait  
 

Regrets: Cendra Beaton, Trustee (Committee Member), Paul Block, Associate 
Superintendent, Sandra Arnold (SPEAC) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish:  T’Sou-ke Nation and 
Sc’ianew Nation and Nuu-chah-nulth: Pacheedaht Nation.  We also recognize some of our schools reside 
on the traditional territory of the Esquimalt Nation and Songhees Nation. 

 
2. Opening Remarks from Chair, Allison Watson 

Chair Watson reiterated the work that has been done with regard to reconciliation.  She reflected 
on last month’s presentation on the SENĆOŦEN language legacy project.  Some reflective 
comments were made by the Chair, Superintendent, Board Chair Ravi Parmar and committee 
member Georgette Walker on language and importance of it being reflected in our schools. 

 
3. COMMITTEE REPORT of March 7, 2023 Education-Policy Committee meeting 

The committee report for the March 7, 2023 Education-Policy Committee meeting was received 
by the committee.  No errors or omissions were noted. 

 
4. BAA COURSE PROPOSALS 

There were no BAA course proposals for this meeting. 

 

 

Page 124 of 144



 

 

5. REVIEW OF POLICIES/REGULATIONS  
a. Draft Revised Policy and Regulations – F-333 “Accumulated Operating Surplus“ - David Lee-

Bonar 
Mr. Lee-Bonar advised that to comply with the Ministry of Education’s K-12 Public Education 
Accumulated Operating Surplus Policy, the District’s Reserve Policy must establish procedures 
that guide the accumulation, spending and reporting of operating surplus funds and outline 
how the Board will engage with local community and education partner groups, including local 
First Nations and Métis Nation BC.  He noted that the name of the draft revised Policy and 
Regulations has been changed to “Accumulated Operating Surplus”. 

 
Recommended Motion: 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft revised 
Policy and Regulations F-333 “Accumulated Operating Surplus”. 

 
b. Draft New Policy and Regulations F-334 “Financial Planning and Reporting“ -  David Lee- Bonar 

Mr. Lee-Bonar reviewed the K-12 Public Education Financial Planning and Reporting Policy.  

He advised that in order to comply with the Ministry’s Policy, Boards must develop, 

implement and provide to the Ministry multi-year financial plans that outline how funding 
and resources will be used to support their strategic plans and operational needs.  As such, 

Boards must have local policies in place that support transparency and accountability by: 
 

• Clearly identifying how local community and partner groups, including local First Nations 
and Métis Nation BC will be engaged to provide input into the development of Board 
financial plans; and 

• Addressing how local community and partner groups, including local First Nations and 
Métis Nation BC will be informed of Boards’ progress towards aligning funding and 
resources with Board strategic plans, other operational needs of the school district, and 
enhanced student educational outcomes. 

• It was suggested that the draft new policy and regulations be brought forward to the 
Resources Committee for information. 

 
Recommended Motion: 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft new 

Policy and Regulations F-334 “Financial Planning and Reporting”. 

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS 

a. Online Learning Hubs Presentation – Heather Lait 

Heather Lait gave a comprehensive presentation on the implementation of online learning hubs 

in the school district.  She spoke about the changes coming for the 2023-24 school year and the 

Page 125 of 144



 

 

expansion of blended learning to include grade 9.  The presentation received positive comments 

from the members of the Committee.  

 

b. Global Stewardship – Scott Stinson 

Scott Stinson presented the intent to bring a motion to the Board to direct staff to explore some 

global stewardship programs.  This can be done through the Education-Policy Committee. 

 

Recommended Motion:  

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct the Superintendent to develop a 

Global Stewardship program for SD62 to be reviewed through the Education-Policy Committee 

for the purposes of initiating opportunities to support SD62 students becoming global citizens. 

 
7. FOR INFORMATION  

a. Research Project Approval – Kapil, Meg – “The Stress Stories Project” 
b. Research Project Approval – Downes-Peters, Brittany – “Supporting Students with Autism in 

Inclusive Classrooms” 
 

8. FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE:  May 2, 2023 

 
 

Page 126 of 144



POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) 
 
April 25, 2023 
 

 
Draft revised Policy and Regulations F-333 ”Accumulated Operating Surplus” are now 
ready for Notice of Motion. 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft 
revised Policy and Regulations F-333 “Accumulated Operating Surplus”. 
 

Page 127 of 144



 

 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL RESERVE 
ACCUMULATED OPERATING 
SURPLUS 

No.: F-333 

Effective:  Apr. 24/18 
Revised:    
Reviewed:  Feb. 19/18; Apr. 4/23; 
Apr. 25/23 
 

 
 
SCHOOL BOARD POLICY 
 
 

The Board of Education is responsible to ensure the District has strong financial management control 
of its resources.   
 
To increase transparency and ensure the necessary resources are available when required, the Board 
of Education will establish an appropriate financial reserve operating surplus to provide for the 
ongoing operational and capital needs of the District and consult and engage with education 
partners and local First Nations and Métis Nation BC on proposed uses of the operating surplus. The 
District shall build and maintain an accumulated reserve contingency of 2% of operating expenses. 
 
The long term financial health of the District is critical to ensure that a strong educational system is 
maintained for the students of the District. 
 

Page 128 of 144



 

 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL RESERVE 
ACCUMULATED OPERATING 
SURPLUS 

No.: F-333 

Effective:  Apr. 24/18 
Revised:    
Reviewed:  Feb. 19/18; Apr. 4/23; 
Apr. 25/23 
 

 
REGULATIONS 
 

The Board of Education is responsible to ensure the District has strong financial management control 
of its resources.  The Superintendent, through the Secretary Treasurer, is responsible for the overall 
financial management of the District’s resources.   
 
The accumulated operating surplus (operating surplus) represents the extent to which revenue 
from all previous years exceeds expenditures from all previous years.  The use of the operating 
surplus enables the Board to engage in long-term planning, mitigate financial risk and support 
consistent services for students.   
 
The Board will use the existing Ministry of Education and Child Care’s financial reporting framework 
to report on the planned and actual use of operating surplus.  The reporting of surpluses and inter-
fund transfers are publicly provided through both the financial statement and budget reporting 
processes.  The district budget reporting processes will outline the initial plan for surpluses and 
transfers and the financial statements will report on the actual surpluses and transfers in any given 
budget year. 
 
Prior to the approval of the financial statements and budget, the Board of Education will consult 
and engage with education partners and local First Nations and Métis Nation BC on proposed uses 
of the operating surplus.  The Board will provide public information as to where, when and how the 
community can provide feedback on the subject.     
 
The Board uses the following categories to manage the operating surplus: 

• Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Contingency) 

• Internally Restricted Operating Surplus 

• Restricted for Future Capital Cost-Sharing 

• Local Capital 

 
Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Contingency) 
The District shall maintain records of all its revenues and expenditures in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The Board believes that the maintenance of a strong financial 
position is fundamental to the District’s overall fiscal strategy, and as such, an appropriate level of 
reserve contingency funds should be established. 
 
Reserve Amount and Establishment  

Page 129 of 144



 

 

Strong financial management practices include protecting the District financially from extraordinary 
circumstances which could negatively impact the education of students. The District shall build and 
maintain an accumulated reserve contingency of 2% of operating expenses. In order to expend funds 
in the year received, it is understood that it will take a number of years for the District to reach the 
desired level. 
 
This reserve contingency will be created through the following mechanisms: 
 

• Annually budgeting $250,000 to be generated from Rental and Leases Revenue; and 

• Retain any local capital proceeds in the reserve account; and 

• Retain any (unrestricted) annual operating excess in the reserve contingency account. 
 
Use of Funds 
The Secretary Treasurer shall designate accumulated reserve funds as restricted and These funds are 
to be used only for purposes as agreed upon by the Board.   These purposes are to include: 
 

1) unexpected occurrences having a negative financial impact on the current fiscal year; 
2) extraordinary needs arising from the delivery of the Strategic Plan; and 
3) the replacement of fixed assets.  

 
Reserve Funds The contingency can only be accessed by Board resolution and by inclusion in the 
annual budget of the Board, or in the case of Restricted Capital Reserve, Board resolution and 
Minister of Education approval.  
 
Reserve Funds The contingency will not be used for ongoing operating expenses, except as directed 
by Board motion. 
 
Internally Restricted Operating Surplus 
The Board can make restrictions for items that are identified by the Board and have defined 
timelines.  The three streams of internally restricted operating surplus are: 

• Restricted due to the nature of constraints on the funds; 

• Restricted for anticipated unusual expenses identified by the Board; and 

• Restricted for operations spanning multiple school years. 

Restricted for Future Capital Cost-Sharing 
To support major capital projects that are identified in the Board’s five-year Capital Plan and 
approved by the Ministry for concept plan or business case development, the Board may restrict 
the Financial Reserve to satisfy capital project cost-share expectations. 
 
Local Capital 
Local Capital will include the Board’s portion of any proceeds from the disposition of capital assets, 
transfers from operating funds and interest earned on Local Capital funds restricted for the 
purchase of tangible capital assets.  Capital projects that are not supported by the government 
through the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s Capital Plan funding need to be funded through 
school district funds. 
 

Page 130 of 144



POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) 
 
April 25, 2023 
 

 
Draft new Policy and Regulations F-334 ”Financial Planning and Reporting” are now ready 
for Notice of Motion. 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft 
new Policy and Regulations F-334 “Financial Planning and Reporting”. 
 

Page 131 of 144



 

 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL PLANNING AND 
REPORTING 

No.: F-334 

Effective:   
Revised:    
Reviewed: Apr. 4/23; Apr. 25/23  
 

 
 
SCHOOL BOARD POLICY 
 

The Board of Education is responsible to ensure the District has strong financial management control 
of its resources.   
 
To ensure an effective and transparent use of resources, the Board of Education will build a multi-year 
financial plan to allocate its forecasted revenues and reserves to achieve its strategic and operational 
plans, and engage with local community and partner groups, including local First Nations and the Metis 
Nation BC, in the development of that plan. 
 
The long term financial health of the District is critical to ensure that a strong educational system is 
maintained for the students of the District. 
 

Page 132 of 144



 

 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL PLANNING AND 
REPORTING 

No.: F-334 

Effective:   
Revised:    
Reviewed: Apr. 4/23; Apr. 25/23  
 

 
REGULATIONS 
 

The Board of Education (“Board”) recognizes its responsibility for the effective use of public funds in 
providing the best possible education to the students in the communities it serves. The Board has a 
duty to govern the District in a fiscally responsible manner, while carrying out the strategies required 
to achieve its goals. 
 
Multi-year Financial Plans 
The annual operating budget is aligned with the three-year financial plan that the Board must develop, 
implement, and provide to the Ministry reflecting the implementation and maintenance of the Board’s 
educational and operational objectives including enhanced student educational outcomes. The 
financial allocations included in the budget should support the strategic directions identified in the 
Board’s Strategic Plan and the Framework for Enhanced Student Learning.   
 
Engagement 
When the Board is developing its multi-year financial plans it will consult and engage with education 
partner groups, including local First Nations and Métis Nation BC.  The Board will provide public 
information as to where, when and how the community can provide feedback on the subject. 
 
Reporting 
The Board will also report the Board’s progress on aligning funding and resources with their strategic 
plans and other operational needs of the school district, including enhancing student educational 
outcomes, by posting annual information on its website as part of its usual report out to stakeholders 
and the public.   
 
The Board will use the existing Ministry financial reporting framework (including a Financial Statement 
Discussion and Analysis Report) to annually report on Boards’ progress towards meeting Board 
objectives as outlined in their multi-year financial plans. 

Page 133 of 144



School District 62 (Sooke) 

Draft - Board of Education 90-Day Work Plan Summary 
 

Action May 2023 June 2023 July 2023 
Approve - Final readings of Initial Budget Bylaw 

- Final readings of  

Capital Plan Bylaw 

- Auditor engagement/plan 

- Annual Plan Package 

- Strategic Plan Targets 

- 5-Year capital Plan 

- Superintendent Growth Report 

 

Review 3rd Quarter Report Package: 

- Strategic Plan Quarterly Report 

- FESL (if applicable) 

- Financial forecast 

- Enrolment report 

Minor & Major Capital Work 

- District 23/24 Operations Plan 

- 22/24 Board Motion Review 

 

Complete - Host Retirement/Long Service Event (May 31) 

- Board Learning Series 

   

Engage - Trustee Student Visits (May 26 TBC) - Graduation Ceremonies and School 

Year End celebrations (EMCS, June 3, 

RBSS June 4, Belmont June 11, 

Westshore June 28) 

- Partner Meetings/Events 

 Sooke (June 5) 

 CUPE’s 60th Anniversary (before 

June 27 Board Meeting)  

 

 

 Partner Meetings/Events 

 Colwood (May 29 TBC) 

 Hulitan (May 17) 

 
 
 

 

Committee Key: Education Policy Committee. Resources Committee. Audit Committee 

 

Page 134 of 144



 

Report to the Board of Education, Sooke School District 
RE: Na’tsa’maht Education Council Meeting at Lekwungen Room, SD62 School Board Office, 

April 19, 2023 
 

1. Guest Presentations/ Discussion & Feedback  
1.1. Employment Equity Application for Special Program – Fred Hibbs, Executive Director of Human 

Resources 

• PowerPoint Presentation 

• Requesting the support of the NEC 

• A Draft of the Confidential Application and letter of support from the NEC was supplied for NEC 

members to review. Email input to Jon Car jcarr@sd62.bc.ca or Marlys Denny mdenny@sd62.bc.ca 

•  Motion to approve will be requested at the next NEC Meeting May 17, 2023  

Comments: 

• This is a blanket application. Once given approval, more work/consultation will need to be done on 

how this will be implanted though out the School District  

• Members representing the 4 Posts are in attendance in todays meeting 

2. Budget - Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer 

• PowerPoint Presentation 

• Reviewed the Summary of Budget Changes – Attachment #1 

• Email question/input to Harold Cull hcull@sd62.bc.ca 

3. The Village Initiative – Cindy Andrew, Healthy Schools Consultant 

• PowerPoint Presentation 

• The Village Initiative is a network of more than 40 organizations sharing a commitment to the vision 

of healthy and thriving children, youth, and families across the Sooke and West Shore region. 
Powered by United Way SVI and SD62 – with the support of many. 

• All are invited to join next meeting or if your organization is interested in joining the Network 

contact Cindy Andrew at candrew@sd62.bc.ca or action@thevillageinitiative.ca 

4. School District Update  

4.1. Board Chair – Paul Block, Associate Super-Intendent -Tabled 
4.2. PVP Changes for 2023-24 – Paul Block, Associate Super-Intendent - Tabled 

4.3. Feeding Futures – Vanessa R. Whyte, District Principal Safe & Healthy Schools – Attachment #2 

• PowerPoint Presentation 

• Our goal is supporting students in SD62 by providing nutritious meals in a universal manner to 

ensure that hunger is not a barrier to learning 

• Email question/input to Vanessa White, SD62 District Principal, Safe and Healthy Schools 
vrwhite@sd62.bc.ca 

Comments: 

• Are you looking for other sources for funding? 

• Have Indigenous owned business to provide food  

• The more food we can get to families the better 

• No data is collected on who is receiving the food 

• Do you provide traditional Indigenous food/meals?  

• Could including kitchen space in future builds of new schools help alleviate space constraints and 

keep costs down?

Page 135 of 144

mailto:jcarr@sd62.bc.ca
mailto:mdenny@sd62.bc.ca
mailto:candrew@sd62.bc.ca
mailto:action@thevillageinitiative.ca
mailto:vrwhite@sd62.bc.ca


5. NA’TSA’MAHT Indigenous Education Update-Tabled 
5.1. Consent Form 2023-24 – Attachment #3 

5.2. Position of Special Responsibility 
5.3. Indigenous Education Budget Priorities 

5.4. Community Events Update 

➢ NA’TSA’MAHT Engagement Dinners 

➢ Year End Celebrations  

 
 

Next Meeting: May 17, 2023 12:30 – 3:00 in SD62 SBO Lekwungen Room 
     Lunch will be served at 12:30 – 1:00. 

 

We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically Esquimalt Nation, Songhees 
Nation; and acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with directly in our schools:  Sc’ianew Nation, Coast Salish; T’Sou-ke 

Nation, Coast Salish; the West Coast Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nulth. (Words gifted by the Nations SD62 works with.) 
 

Page 136 of 144



Attachment #1 

  

Page 137 of 144



Attachment #2 

  

Page 138 of 144



Attachment #3 

 

Page 139 of 144



 

1  

 

 
 

Committee Report of  

Governance Committee Meeting 
April 17, 2023 

 
 

Present: Amanda Dowhy, Trustee (Committee Chair) 

Trudy Spiller, Trustee (Committee Member) 

Allison Watson (Committee Member) 
   

Staff:  Scott Stinson, Superintendent & CEO 

Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

The meeting was called to order at 5:06 pm by the Committee Chair, and she acknowledged that that 
the Committee was honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, 
specifically Esquimalt Nation, Songhees Nation and acknowledge the three nation SD 62 works with 
directly in our schools; Sc’ianew Nation, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast Pacheedaht 
Nation Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three Nations SD62 works with) 

 

2. COMMITTEE REPORT  

The Board of Education of Sooke School District 62 (Sooke) received the Governance Committee 

Report dated June 20, 2022 at the Board Meeting dated June 28, 2022. 

 

3. PRESENTATIONS 

There were no presentations. 

 

4. BUSINESS 

4.1 Review of Terms of Reference – Scott Stinson 

The Governance Committee reviewed the Terms of Reference for the Committee, and any 

questions that the trustees had were answered. It was confirmed that the Board has approved 

the Terms of Reference for all Board committees. 

 

4.2 Summary of Work to Date – Scott Stinson 

A summary of work to date was provided from staff to Committee members. The Committee 

discussed trustee participation on staff hiring panels and instructed the Superintendent to 

create a survey/questionnaire for trustees to complete prior to bringing the issue back to the 

next Committee meeting.  It was also noted that the previous Board passed a motion, as 

opposed to a policy, approving annual adjustments to trustee remuneration based on the 

provincial consumer price index. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 140 of 144



 

4.3 Policy Update Direction 

a. A-100 Statement of Philosophy 

 

Staff provided a review of the revised draft policy A-100 Statement of Philosophy and the 

Committee supported the following motion going to the Board for review and consideration: 

 

Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of 

Motion to draft revised Policy A-100 “Statement of Philosophy” as presented to the Governance 

Committee at their meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

b. A-101 Administrative Organization 

 

Staff provided a review of the revised draft policy A-101 Administrative Organization and the 

Committee supported the following motion going to the Board for review and consideration: 

 

Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of 

Motion to draft revised Policy A-101 “Administrative Organization” as presented to the Governance 

Committee at their meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

 

c. A-400 School Board Meetings 

 

The Committee discussed the necessity to include the Board Bylaw 1-20 regarding procedural 

regulations in the body of Policy A-400 School Board Meetings and it was determined that 

including the reference to the bylaw at the bottom of the policy (housekeeping item) was 

sufficient. 

 

 

 

4.4 Policy A-350 Professional Development 

 

For agenda items 4.4 a, b and c: Staff provided a review of the revised draft policy A-350 

Professional Development and the Committee supported the following motion going to the 

Board for review and consideration: 

 

Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of 

Motion to draft revised Policy A-350 “Professional Development” as presented to the Governance 

Committee at their meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE: May 8, 2023 at 5:00 pm. 

Page 141 of 144



1 
 

 

Board Info Note 
Public Board Meeting 

April 25, 2023 
Agenda Item 11.1: Superintendent’s Update  

 

 LEARNING 

Safety and Resilience Grant  

• Through the Island Health Safety and Resilience Grant, we secured 48K in funding to assist with program 

costs for Hear4Peers, an evidence-based, research-backed mental health promotion and education 

program through the Canadian Mental Health Association. The structure of the program is built on a peer 

mentoring support system that is developed by coaching 20 student volunteers and 3-4 supporting adults 

in a secondary school. This team of students and adults then implements peer support activities with 

Grade 9 students. In addition, the team visits middle feeder schools to share the program with incoming 

Grade 8’s as part of the transition process between middle and secondary. When the Grade 8’s begin at 

secondary school, they have a network of peer mentors who they know and recognize. The program has 

been running successfully in Vancouver; we will be the first pilot school district on Vancouver Island to 

participate. Big thanks to Cindy Andrew who wrote the grant application in collaboration with a team of 

school counsellors. 

 

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion Audit – Bakau Consulting 

• As part of the Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEI) Audit, four surveys are running April 24-May 5 to understand 

perspectives on experiences of DEI in the District. The surveys are specifically for secondary students, 

parents/guardians, staff and community partners. Following the surveys there will be a series of focus 

groups with students and staff to gather more information. This work greatly advances the work of the 

strategic plan by gathering an understanding of where we currently are in the district with regards to DEI 

and will make recommendations for improvements. 

 

 ENGAGEMENT  

Feeding Futures School Food Program 

• Recently the Provincial Government announced funding to support school food programs.  SD62 has 

received targeted funding to support district initiatives for school meals, food programs and other 

initiatives that support healthy eating and student nutrition. 

• At present, the school district is developing a draft plan to use as a vehicle for consultation with 

Indigenous Rights Holders, parents and district stakeholders. 

• The grant allows for staff time to coordinate the program, in addition to the direct provision of food. 

• More information will come forward to the Board through both the Education-Policy Committee and 

Resources Committee. 

 

Page 142 of 144



2 
 

NA’TSA’MAHT Community Dinners 

• On Wednesday, April 20th the NA’TSA’MAHT Indigenous Education Department hosted a community 

dinner at Ruth King Elementary School.  The event was well attended with approximately 200 students, 

families, community members, and staff.  This community dinner was the third this spring facilitated in 

joint leadership with District Principal, Jon Carr and District Vice Principal, Marlys Denny.  We look 

forward to the NA’TSA’MAHT Dinner that is scheduled at Saseenos Elementary on Wednesday, April 

26th. 

• Families, Elders and staff had the opportunity to enjoy a delicious meal of meat or vegetarian chili with 

bannock and salad catered by SD62 role model, Caroline Frank.  Beyond the incredible meal, highlights 

of the evening included student calls to action, drumming lead by Gramma Clifton, and author Ren Louie 

at the Kids’ Corner.  The students’ performance moved the crowd with their leadership and drumming 

skills.  Positive feedback was provided through conversations with staff. 

• We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the Nations SD62 partners with and the urban 

Indigenous partners for sharing their time, wisdom and stories on both nights.  We are honoured for their 

presence and for the support they provide in our collective effort to strengthen connections to the 

communities we serve.  

• We would like to thank and acknowledge Board Trustees Russ Chipps and Ravi Parmar for attending the 

dinner, as well as the following community members:  Elder Shirley Alphonse, Elder Henry Chipps, 

Brother Rick Peters, Elder Earl Claxton, Kookum Jo-Ina Young, Gramma Clifton, Caroline Frank, Ren 

Louie, Lynai Quatell and Julia Clifton from Hulitan Family and Services Society as well as representation 

from the University of Victoria. 

• We would also like to thank and acknowledge Principal Vicki Ives, Vice Principal Sarah Finnie and the 

staff from Ruth King for hosting and opening their doors and hearts to the community.  We would also 

acknowledge members of the NA’TSA’MAHT Department Team, especially Trish McNabb, who 

volunteered to make this evening a tremendous success. 

 

 

Page 143 of 144



3 
 

Sangster Choir News 

• Sangster Elementary Choir attended the Greater Victoria Performing Arts Festival on Thursday, April 

13th and sang beautifully.  Over the April 15/16th weekend, our music teacher/choir director, Chris 

Poynter received information that the choir was invited to a Showcase Event on Tuesday evening (April 

18th), along with being awarded a $100 Commitment to Choral Education Award. Very exciting! Seven 

choirs out of twenty were invited to perform at the GVPA Festival Showcase on Tuesday which is held at 

St. Patrick’s Parish Church at 7:00pm. 

 

 GROWTH 

Early Learning and Child Care 

• Beginning in the 2022/2023 school year, the Ministry of Education and Child Care provided targeted 

funding for Early learning and Child Care, guaranteed for three years.  As we explored the need and 

programming in the school year, we used the funds for a 0.4 lead position that Frances Krusekopf filled 

in addition to her principal duties at Millstream Elementary.  As we move into next year, recognizing the 

extent of work required in this portfolio and the need for a full PVP team at Millstream, we will be moving 

the lead educator to a full-time district principal role and providing Millstream with a full-time principal 

and a vice-principal.  The district role is a two-year term position to correspond with the funding and will 

be re-evaluated based on extension of the grant funding at that time. 

Digital Solutions Laptop Rollout 

• As part of our ongoing commitment to support teaching staff in schools, we continue to work with our 

Principals and Facilities team to refresh Middle School Teacher Laptops. 

The deployment Schedule and the number of laptops allocated are below: 

School Name # Laptops Requested # Spare Laptops Rollout Dates 

Dunsmuir Middle School 46 9 April 14 & 17 

Journey Middle School 41 8 April 24 & 25 

Spencer Middle School 42 8 May 12 & 15 

John Stubbs Middle and Elementary 61 12 May 19, 23, 24 

 

Page 144 of 144


	6.1 Correspondence (page )
	a. Email from Single Mothers’ Alliance dated March 7, 2023, RE: Transit for Teens
	b. Letter from the Sooke Music Teachers’ Association dated March 8, 2023, RE: Current State of Music Education in SD 62
	c. Letter from the City of Langford Mayor and Council dated March 16, 2023, RE: Response to Request for All-Weather Turf Field and Lights
	d. Letter to the Mayor and Council of the City of Langford, dated March 17, 2023, RE: Request for Meeting
	e. Email from Laurel Parliament, dated March 17, 2023, RE: Expansion, Growth and Music Programs
	f. Email from Alia Riza, dated March 31, 2023, RE: Moose Hide Campaign
	g. Letter from Kevin Allen, dated April 17, 2023, RE: SD 62 International Student-Juan de Fuca Soccer Partnership
	h. Letter from Bob Beckett, dated April 19, 2023, RE: Support for Global Stewardship Project Motion
	i. Letter from Stew Young, dated April 19, 2023, RE: Support for Global Stewardship Project Motion
	7.1 Resources Committee – Meeting of April 11, 2023 – Ebony Logins (page )
	8.1 Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of April 4, 2023 – Allison Watson (page )
	6.1 Correspondence
	a. Letter from Minister Lore, dated February 28, 2023: RE: Congratulations.
	62. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson
	That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the letter from Minister Lore, dated February 28, 2023, RE: Congratulations.
	CARRIED
	7.1 Resources Committee – Meeting of March 8, 2023 – Ebony Logins
	8.1 Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of March 7, 2023 – Allison Watson
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Committee Report of
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
	2. COMMITTEE REPORT
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	4. BUSINESS




